## CONTENTS

AUTHORS	9	
INTRODUCTION	15	
Chapter I. ORGANIZING AND CONDUCTING FIELD TRAINING ACTIVITIES (Loredana Marcela Trancă, Cosmin Goian, Patricia-Luciana		
Runcan)		
I.1. Introduction	17	
I.2. Regulations on the general organization and conduct of field		
activities		
1. Organization of activities		
2. Responsibilities for organizing the activities		
3. Activity program		
4. Conducting the visit		
5. Delays, absences and the possibility of recovery		
6. Evaluation	19	
I.3. Responsibilities regarding the organization and performance		
of field placement		
I.4. Self protection issues in field placement		
I.5. Recording student activities		
Table of acquiring the rules of field placement		
Field training Convention of the		
Field placement Delegation		
Request to access confidential data		
Attendance Sheet for field placement for semester	2.2	
of the academic year		
Minutes of visiting agencies during field placement,		
recorded by the practice coordinator		
Sheet regarding the practice agency description		
Field placement log		
Centralized record of field placement		

#### **Chapter II. OBJECTIVES, TASKS, FIELD PLACEMENT**

EVALUATION (Mihaela Tomiță, Loreni Baciu, Theofild Lazăr)	41
II.1. Introduction	41
II.2. Objectives and methods of conducting field placement	
II.3. Aspects of voluntary practice	
II.4. Tasks on field training activities	
II.4.1. Tasks for the first year:	
II.4.2. Tasks for the second year	
II.4.3. Tasks for the third year:	
II.5 Ideas for field training in agencies	
II.6. Evaluation of field training	

## Chapter III. EMPIRICAL METHODS OF INTERVENTION IN SOCIAL WORK WITH DIVERSE GROUPS. PRACTICE METHODS AND MODELS ... 68

III.1. The importance and necessity of public-private collaboration within the context of social services provision ( <i>Loreni Baciu</i> )	8
III.1.1. The complementarity of public-private collaboration and	
0	58
III.1.2. Practical recommendations regarding the improvement of	
public-private collaborations' functioning in social services	
provident	70
III.2. SWOT Analysis - a useful tool (for students) to analyze the	
strategy of social institutions (Aurora Carmen Bărbat)7	'7
III.2.1. The relationship between theory and practice in academic	
training7	77
III.3. Concrete and functional abilities necessary for carrying out	
a case study in social work (Andreea Georgiana Bîrneanu,	
Ramona Bran)	82
III.3.1. Establishing contact and creating an atmosphere of trust	33
III.3.2. The interview; collecting, structuring, and analyzing	
information	33
III.3.3. Conclusions and recommendations8	
III.4. Methods of intervention in the rural community (Theofild Lazăr)8	86
III.4.1. Social evaluation of the communities:	
III.4.2. The evaluation of communities' social resources	
incorporates four main analytical elements:	37
III.4.3. Methods to integrate social components into Local	
	38
	,0

## Chapter IV. GUIDELINES FOR STUDENTS' FIELD TRAINING

(Loredana Marcela Trancă, Andreea Georgiana Bîrneanu, Aurora	
Carmen Bărbat)	135
IV.1 Introduction	135
IV.2.The list of practice agencies	136
IV.3. Contact of practice coordinators	
IV.4. Models of tools for social workers	
Individualized protection plan	209
Structure of a case study	211
Interview guide - the story of my life	
BIBLIOGRAPHY	215
GLOSSARY	218
ANNEX. WEB RESOURCES IN SOCIAL WORK FIELD PLACEMENT.	221

*Assistant Editor:* Loredana Marcela TRANCĂ

#### Authors:

Cosmin GOIAN Loreni BACIU Aurora Carmen BĂRBAT Andreea Georgiana BIRNEANU Ramona BRAN Theofild LAZĂR Patricia Luciana RUNCAN Adrian PĂȘCUȚĂ Carmen STANCIU Mihaela TOMIȚĂ Loredana Marcela TRANCĂ Florina-Luiza VLAICU

### Translation:

Florina-Luiza VLAICU Ramona BRAN Edited by Cosmin GOIAN

# TEACHING SOCIAL WORK PRACTICE



### **AUTHORS:**

**Cosmin GOIAN,** Associate professor, Faculty of Sociology and Psychology, West University of Timișoara, Romania. Social worker BSW - graduate of the West University of Timișoara (1999), PhD in Philosophy (2007) from the Alexandru Ioan Cuza University of Iasi.

Since November 29, 2011, Head of the Social Work Departament – University of the West. September 15, 2008 – November 29, 2011, Vice dean of the Faculty of Sociology and Psychology, University of the West,Timişoara. Since June 2008 – President of National Association of Social Workers – Timis branch Romania. 2000-2001 – President of Social Worker's Association Banat. His relevant publications: *Theoretical perspectives upon social work discourse in Romania* (2012); Semantic analysis of the dynamics of the social work language applied in Romania (2012); Semiotics and social work (2007); Skills in social work (2004)

**Loreni BACIU**, graduate of the West University of Timisoara, currently works as an Lecturer at the West University of Timisoara (Romania). She received her PhD from the West University of Timisoara in 2010 with a thesis on the complementarity between the public and private organizations from the Western Region of Romania, within the context of social services provision. She has published mainly social sciences research papers in Romanian and international Journals and also published and co-edited books with various topics in the area of social work. Among the latest releases she edited, "Youth Employment: Challenges and Opportunities" stands out, as a collection of papers gathered from 55 authors and co-authors, from 11 countries around the world.Currently, her professional interests are focused on two areas: the collaboration between the public and private sectors and the policies and practices in youth employment.

**Aurora Carmen BĂRBAT**, M.D., PhD – Physician, general medicine (1993, University for Medicine and Pharmacy "Victor Babes", Timișoara, Romania) / Dipl. in Caritas Science and Christian Social Work (2002, Albert Ludwig-

University, Freiburg i. Br., Germany), works as senior lecturer at West University of Timişoara, Faculty for Sociology and Psychology, Department for Social Work. She obtained her PhD title (Doctor in Medical Sciences) in 2009 at the University for Medicine and Pharmacy "Victor Babes"); has published 3 books, ca. 40 articles & chapter books in scientific (inter)national volumes and journals, covering areas such as social medicine, social work, drug use, coping with cancer, religion as coping. Has also a lot of participations at national and international socio-medical and psychospiritual trainings, research programs and conferences, has organized scientific events, being member of Romanian and international scientific organizations.

Andreea Georgiana BÎRNEANU, is currently works as an Junior Lecturer at the West University of Timișoara (Romania), Faculty of Sociology and Psychology, Department of Social Work since 2008. She is licensed in Social Work and Psychology and she continued her studies graduating the program masters in Clinical Psychology and Management in Social Work. Her interests are in the field of child protection and she has a PhD in Sociology from the University of the West in Timișoara (Romania) in 2012.

**Ramona BRAN,** has been teaching English for Specific Purposes at the West University of Timişoara for 9 years. She has a B.A. in English and French Philology, and an M.A. in British and American Studies. She has recently finished a PhD in American Studies at the University of Dortmund, Germany. Her thesis is an interdisciplinary work, tackling American literature from a cultural studies' perspective. Ramona Bran has presented and published tens of scientific papers and articles, and has elaborated several courses of English for her students in social work, psychology, and sociology. Her fields of interest include British and American literature, as well as cultural, social, and political studies. She is a member of RSEAS (The Romanian Society for English and American Studies) and of RAAS (The Romanian Association for American Studies). At the same time she is the managing editor of The Journal of Social Informatics and co-editor of The Journal of Gerontological Social Work, both edited by the West University of Timisoara.

**Theofild LAZĂR,** graduate of the West University of Timișoara, currently works as an Senior Lecturer at the West University of Timisoara (Romania).

He received his PhD from the West University of Timisoara in 2010 with a thesis on rural community development. He has published mainly social sciences research papers in Romanian and international Journals and also published and co-edited books with various topics in the area of social work. His professional interests are focused on two areas: community development and vulnerable groups employment strategies.

**Patricia-Luciana RUNCAN**, currently works as a Senior Lecturer at the West University of Timișoara (Romania). She holds a BA in Sociology from the same University, a BA in Law from the "Tibiscus" University of Timișoara, and a PhD in Sociology from the West University of Timișoara. Her main areas of interest include social work and sociology. She authored *Depression in the Elderly* (2013) and *Supervision in Educational, Social and Medical Services Professions* (2013), and co-edited *Risks and Opportunities in the Romanian Social Work System* (2011) and *Applied Social Sciences: Social Work* (2013).

Adrian PĂȘCUȚĂ, he holds a BA in Economical Sciences, a MA in Sociology of Political and Administrative Institutions, is PhD in sociology from 2010 and currently is lecturer at the West University of Timisoara, Romania, Faculty of Sociology and Psychology, Department of Social Work. His professional interests are focused on the areas: sociology, minority groups, public and social policies, employment policies. His publications include over 20 scholarly articles and several chapters in books.

**Carmen STANCIU**, is Ph.D. in sociology, obtained the PhD title at the Univ. of Bucharest, Romania. Currently she is lecturer at West University of Timisoara, Department of Social Work, Faculty of Sociology and Psychology. Her current areas of interest are gerontological social work and management in social services. In this direction, it is worth noting that she is the main editor of the Journal of Gerontological Social Work, West University of Timisoara Publishing and is also the Executive Coordinator of the International Conference of Gerontological Social Work. **Mihaela TOMIȚĂ**, currently works as a Associate professor at West University of Timisoara, Faculty of Sociology and Psychology, Department of Social Work. Her current areas of interest include restorative justice, alternative sanctions, victims' protection, sociology of deviance and delinquency, human rights, probation, law in social work, criminal justice. She is the initiator of the SPECTO international conferences and the coordinator of the Second World Congress on Resilience. She is also the Head of the Regional Prevention, Evaluation and Anti-drug Counseling Center from Timișoara. Her relevant publications include *Working with offenders* (2013); *A positive and supportive approach for aggressive adolescents. Promoting the Resilience of Youth Delinquent* (2013); *Probation as a Field of Study. Institution and Profession* (2012) and over 60 scholarly articles and several chapters in books.

**Loredana Marcela TRANCĂ,** is currently a junior lecturer at the Social Work Department of the West University of Timișoara, Romania. She holds a BA (2006) in Social Work, a MA (2008) in Management of Social Work and a PhD (2011) in Sociology from the West University of Timișoara, Romania. She coordinates the students' field practice and she is also the director of the Christian Association For Help from Timișoara. Her main research interests are human rights, work addiction, social work with families, social work with disabled people and values in social work. Her publications include over 40 scholarly articles and several chapters in books. Has also a lot of participations at national and international trainings and conferences. She was member of the organizing committee of national and international conferencess and also member of Romanian and international scientific organizations.

**Florina-Luiza VLAICU,** is currently social worker and a master course student in the "Management in Social Work" program, Social Work Department, Faculty of Sociology and Psychology, West University of Timișoara. She completed the undergraduate studies in the same Department. Current areas of interest are field placement, social work for persons who have a substance dependence, management, social work theories and methods.

"I hear and I forget, I see and I remember, I do and I understand." *Confucius*